

National Library of Canada

Acquisitions and Bibliographic Services Branch

395 Wellington Street Ottawa, Ontario K1A 0N4 Bibliothèque nationale du Canada

Direction des acquisitions et des services bibliographiques

395, rue Wellington Ottawa (Ontario) K1A 0N4

Your file - Votre reference

Our tile - Notre reference

AVIS

The quality of this microform is heavily dependent upon the quality of the original thesis submitted for microfilming. Every effort has been made to ensure the highest quality of reproduction possible.

NOTICE

If pages are missing, contact the university which granted the degree.

Some pages may have indistinct print especially if the original pages were typed with a poor typewriter ribbon or if the university sent us an inferior photocopy.

Reproduction in full or in part of this microform is governed by the Canadian Copyright Act, R.S.C. 1970, c. C-30, and subsequent amendments. La qualité de cette microforme dépend grandement de la qualité de la thèse soumise au microfilmage. Nous avons tout fait pour assurer une qualité supérieure de reproduction.

S'il manque des pages, veuillez communiquer avec l'université qui a conféré le grade.

La qualité d'impression de certaines pages peut laisser à désirer, surtout si les pages originales ont été dactylographiées à l'aide d'un ruban usé ou si l'université nous a fait parvenir une photocopie de qualité inférieure.

La reproduction, même partielle, de cette microforme est soumise à la Loi canadienne sur le droit d'auteur, SRC 1970, c. C-30, et ses amendements subséquents.

Canadä

UNIVERSITY OF ALBERTA

VELOCITY DISTRIBUTION OVER DUNE BEDFORMS

ΒY

JANALI TAGHAVI-JELODAR

A THESIS

SUBMITTED TO THE FACULTY OF GRADUATE STUDIES AND RESEARCH IN PARTIAL FULFILLMENT OF THE REQUIREMENTS FOR THE DEGREE OF

MASTER OF SCIENCE

DEPARTMENT OF CIVIL ENGINEERING

EDMONTON, ALBERTA FALL, 1994



National Library of Canada

Acquisitions and Bibliographic Services Branch

395 Wellington Street Ottawa, Ontario K1A 0N4 Bibliothèque nationale du Canada

Direction des acquisitions et des services bibliographiques

395, rue Wellington Ottawa (Ontario) K1A 0N4

Your de Autre reference

Our faie - Notice reference

The author has granted an irrevocable non-exclusive licence allowing the National Library of Canada to reproduce, loan. distribute or sell copies of his/her thesis by any means and in any form or format, making this thesis available to interested persons.

L'auteur a accordé une licence exclusive irrévocable et non Bibliothèque permettant à la Canada de nationale du reproduire, prêter, distribuer ou vendre des copies de sa thèse de quelque manière et sous quelque forme que ce soit pour mettre des exemplaires de cette disposition thèse à des la personnes intéressées.

The author retains ownership of the copyright in his/her thesis. Neither the thesis nor substantial extracts from it may be printed or otherwise reproduced without his/her permission. L'auteur conserve la propriété du droit d'auteur qui protège sa thèse. Ni la thèse ni des extraits substantiels de celle-ci ne doivent être imprimés ou autrement reproduits sans son autorisation.

ISBN 0-315-95118-4

Canadä

UNIVERSITY OF ALBERTA RELEASE FORM

NAME OF AUTHOR: JANALI TAGHAVI-JELODAR TITLE OF THESIS: VELOCITY DISTRIBUTION OVER DUNE BEDFORMS DEGREE FOR WHICH THESIS WAS PRESENTED: MASTER OF SCIENCE YEAR THESIS DEGREE GRANTED: FALL, 1994

Permission is hereby granted to THE UNIVERSITY OF ALBERTA LIBRARY to reproduce single copies of this thesis and to lend or sell such copies for private, scholarly or scientific research purposes only.

The author reserves other publication rights, and neither the thesis nor extensive extracts from it may be printed or otherwise reproduced without the author's written permission.

(SIGNED). J. Tay havi

PERMANENT ADDRESS: MIAn Gatab Post office Babol, Mazandran IRAN

DATED . 14 . 14. 19.94

UNIVERSITY OF ALBERTA

FACULTY OF GRADUATE STUDIES AND RESEARCH

The undersigned certify that they have read, and recommend to the Faculty of Graduate Studies and Research for acceptance, a thesis entitled VELOCITY DISTRIBUTION OVER DUNE BEDFORMS submitted by JANALI TAGHAVI-JELODAR in partial fulfillment of the requirements for the degree of MASTER OF SCIENCE in CIVIL ENGINEERING.

Supervisor

Majandren Jöhn Shaw

Date July 13, 1994

ABSTRACT

Non-uniform flow characteristics over fixed dune bed is studied, using previously measured velocity profiles and bed shear stresses. The velocity profiles are measured using the Laser Doppler Anemometer. The behavior of the flow are analysed in two ways. The difference of velocity and bed shear distribution from uniform flow described by the classical log law velocity distribution is investigated. The velocity is non-dimensionalized using mean velocity, surface velocity, and peak perturbation velocity. The length scale is non-dimensionalized using dune-length. The non-dimensional forms of the velocity profile are plotted versus the relative depth of flow. A relation between velocity scale and the bed shear stress is found. Second, the distribution of velocity in the outer region is studied by analogy to the plane wall-wake theory. Using the velocity distribution, the size of obstacle and other geometric properties of the channel, the wall wake analysis gives mean velocity profiles, wall shear stress, decay of velocity defect, and growth of the half-width of the wake in convenient forms. These parameters along with a set of shape functions describe the velocity profile.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

The author wishes to express his sincere gratitude to Dr. P. M. Steffler for suggesting this topic and giving his guidance and advice throughout the course of the study.

Special acknowledgments are due Dr. N. Rajaratnam for his contribution in the analysis of plane wall-wake and to Dr. D. A. Lyn; professor of Civil Engineering at the Purdue university for providing data. The help of the Mr. O. Aderibigbe with grammatical revisions is appreciated. The author would like to thank the Government of the Islamic Republic of Iran for the scholarship given to me through the Ministry of Culture and Higher Education.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

CHAPTER I: INTRODUCTION	page 1
CHAPTER 2: LITERATURE REVIEW	3
2.1. Introduction	3
2.2. Earlier Work On Shear Stress and Velocity	3
2.3. Effects Of Free Surface	5
2.4. Open Channel Flows Over Dunes	5
2.4.1. Lyn's Data	8
2.4.2. Delft Data	9
2.5. wall-wake	10
2.6. Conclusions	11
CHAPTER 3: VELOCITY PERTURBATION ANALYSIS	15
3.1. Introduction	15
3.2. Vlocity Distribution	15
3.3. Bed Shear Stress	17
CHAPTER 4: WALL WAKE ANALYSIS	55
4.1. Introduction	55
4.2. Vlocity Distribution	55
4.3. Bed Shear Stress	58
CHAPTER 5: CONCLUSIONS	74
REFERENCES	75

List of Tables

Table 2.1Experimental parameters (Source: Lyn [1993])12

List of Figures

Figure				page
Figure 2.1	Definition sketch of flow and bed forms studied;			
	(a) Type I bed form; (b)Type II bed form (source: Lyn (19	993))	•	13
Figure 2.2	Definition sketch of flow and bed forms studied;			
	(source: Delft (1988))			14
Figure 3.1	Velocity distribution (measured by D.A.Lyn).			18
-			•	
Figure 3.2	Velocity distribution (T5 measured by Delft).	•	•	22
Figure 3.3	Velocity distribution (T6 measured by Delft).	•	•	28
Figure 3.4	Differences in velocity (Case 1 measured by D.Lyn).	•	•	34
Figure 3.5	Differences in velocity (Case 2 measured by D.Lyn).	•	•	35
Figure 3.6	Differences in velocity (Case 3 measured by D.Lyn).	•	•	36
Figure 3.7	Differences in velocity (Case 1.2.3 measured by D.Lyn).	•	•	37
Figure 3.8	Differences in velocity (T5 measured by Delft).	•		38
Figure 3.9	Differences in velocity (T6 measured by Delft).	•		39
Figure 3.10	Normalized differences in velocity with surface velocity			
	(Case 1 measured by D.Lyn).	•	•	40
Figure 3.11	Normalized differences in velocity with surface velocity			
	(Case 2 measured by D.Lyn).	•		41
Figure 3.12	Normalized differences in velocity with surface velocity			
	(Case 3 measured by D.Lyn).			42
Figure 3.13	Normalized differences in velocity with surface velocity			
	(Case 1.2.3 measured by D.Lyn).	•	•	43
Figure 3.14	Normalized differences in velocity with surface velocity			
	(T5 measured by Delft).	•	•	44
Figure 3.15	Normalized differences in velocity with surface velocity			

	(T6 measured by Delft).	•	•	•	45
Figure 3.16	Normalized differences in velocity with peak perturb	oation			
	(Case 1.2.3 measured by D.Lyn).	•	•	•	46
Figure 3.17	Normalized differences in velocity with surface velo	city			
	(T6 measured by Delft).	•		•	47
Figure 3.13	Normalized differences in velocity with peak perturb	oation			
	(Case 1.2.3 measured by D.Lyn).	•	•	-	48
Figure 3.19	Peak perturbation vs wave length	•	•	•	49
Figure 3.20	Bed shear stress U_* (T5, measured by Delft).	-	•	•	50
Figure 3.21	Bed shear stress U_* (T6, measured by Delft).	•	•	•	51
Figure 3.22	Differences in bed shear stress vs. wave length.			•	52
Figure 3.23	Peak velocity vs stress differences .				53
Figure 3.24	Normalized peak perturbation vs stress differences				54
Figure 4.1	Velocity distribution in the region of seperation (T5)				59
Figure 4.2	Velocity distribution in the wake region (T5).			-	60
Figure 4.3	Velocity distribution in the region of seperation (T6)	-			61
Figure 4.4	Velocity distribution in the wake region (T6).	-			62
Figure 4.5	Determination of u_{Im} and b	-	•		63
Figure 4.6	Velocity distribution : outer region (T5)		•	-	64
Figure 4.7	Velocity distribution : outer region (T6) .		•	•	65
Figure 4.8	Velocity distribution : outer region (Lyn) .			-	66
Figure 4.9	Velocity distribution : inner region (T5) .			•	67
Figure 4.10	Velocity distribution : inner region (T6)				68
Figure 4.11	Power law form of velocity distribution : inner region	n (T5).		-	69
Figure 4.12	Power law form of velocity distribution : inner region	n (T6).			70
Figure 4.13	Decay of velocity scale		•	•	71

Figure 4.14	Growth of length scale.	•	•	•	•	•	•	72
Figure 4.15	Variation of bed shear stress.		•	•	•	•	•	73

List of Symbols

Symbol	Description
b	Length scale;
\overline{b}	Half width of wall wake;
C_D	drag coefficient;
F	Froude number;
E	Acceleration due to gravity;
Н	Mean flow depth;
h	Height of dune;
k _s	Bed roughness due to sand grains;
l	Prandtl mixing length;
L	Wave length of the bed form;
L _r	Reattachment length;
р	Pressure;
Q	Discharge;
R	Reynolds number ;
S	Mean slope;
U	Depth-averaged velocity ;
U_o	Freestream Velocity;
и	Local point mean velocity;
u _l	Velocity defect;
<i>u</i> _{1<i>m</i>}	Maximum velocity defect;
u _c	Calculated mean velocity;
$-\overline{u'v'}$	Reynolds' shear stress;
<i>u</i> *	Shear velocity;

U _{*c}	Total shear velocity;
$(u_c - u)_s$	Differences in surface velocity;
$(u_c - u)_p$	Differences in peak perturbation;
x	Streamwise coordinate measured from bed-form crest;
у	Elevation above mean bed level;
Ζ	Elevation from arbitrary datum;
β	Angle of local dune slope;
η	$\frac{y}{b}$
τ	Shear stress;
$ au_o$	Wall shear stress;
$ au_c$	Calculated wall shear stress;
к	Von Karman constant (≈ 0.4);
v	Kinematic viscosity;

CHAPTER 1. INTRODUCTION

The purpose of the study reported herein was to investigate the detailed characteristics of non-uniform flow over dune and ripple shaped bed forms. The detailed characteristics of non-uniform flow is important in calculating resistance and erosion of alluvial channels. Prediction of bed form evolution, sediment transport rate and actual channel stage are the ultimate applications of this knowledge. Existing techniques apply bed stress relations based on depth averaged velocity and uniform flow assumptions.

As in boundary layers with pressure gradients, larger bed stresses for accelerating flows and reduced stresses, (possibly negative in a separated region) for decelerating flows are expected. The main results desired from this study are: identification of a disturbance velocity scale, evaluation of the behavior of this scale with distance and the evaluation of relationship between the velocity scale and bed shear stress.

This study uses the Laser Doppler Anemometer measurements performed at Delft (1988) and by Lyn (1993). The behavior of the flow over the dune was evaluated nondimensionally from these empirical results in two distinct analyses:

1- Investigation of difference of velocity and shear distribution from uniform flow described by the classical log-law velocity distribution.

2- Determination of the distribution of velocity in the outer region by the plane wallwake theory and the log-law for the inner region.

In chapter 2, a brief review on velocity distribution and bed shear stress is presented. Open channel flows over dunes are discussed in addition to the plane wall-wake. A summary of the experiments used in the present study is given. The difference of the velocity distribution for disturbed flow over dune from uniform how is discussed in chapter 3. A similarity analysis based on an analogy with the plane wall-wake is presented in chapter 4.

CHAPTER 2. LITERATURE REVIEW

2.1 Introduction

A survey of the existing literature on turbulent flow involving velocity distribution and bed shear stress reveals that such investigations are rather limited to the case of uniform open-channel flows. In this chapter, a brief review on the earlier works shows the level of our knowledge on the dynamics of flow in open channel flow. The review is restricted to velocity distribution and bed shear stress.

2.2 Earlier Work On Shear Stress and Velocity

The flow about a solid body is characterized by boundary layer theory generated by dividing it into two regions:

a) wall (inner) region in the neighborhood of the body in which viscocity is very important.

b) core (outer) region where the viscocity is ignored.

Prandtl (1914) showed from his experiments that flow in a boundary layer can be laminar or turbulent. The transition affects separation and drag. The upper layer with vconstant velocity V_m is considered as the core (outer) layer. In the bottom layer which called boundary layer; the velocity of the fluid increases from zero at the wall and finally

oproaches the value corresponding to the frictionless flow (free-stream). The boundary layer is based on Prandtl's theory.

The theoretical formula developed by Prandtl and Karman and verified by the measurements of Nikuradse have resulted in rational formulas for velocity distribution and bed shear stress for turbulent flow in circular pipes. G. H. Keulegan (1938) applied the pipe formule to study open channel flow, with certain assumptions regarding the

effects of secondary currents and free surface. Also, the hydraulic radius was chosen as the characteristic length. Similar rational formulas for open channel were then developed. Keulegan verified this formula using the experimental work of Bazin.

$$\frac{u}{u_*} = \frac{1}{\kappa} \ln(\frac{yu_*}{v}) + A \tag{2.1}$$

Where u is the local point mean velocity, u_* is the shear velocity, κ is the Von Karman constant, y is the distance above mean bed level, and ν is the kinematic viscosity.

Recent studies on the log-law has led to the conclusion that it gives good results in the wall region but there is a deviation in the upper layer. Adjusting κ and A in Eqn. (2.1) is not sufficient to remove this deviation. However, a new function referred to as a wake function can be added to the log-law as shown in equation (2.2). Many wake functions have been proposed to date (Coles, 1956, I.Nezu and H. Nakagawa, 1993) and appear in the velocity distribution formula as:

$$\frac{u}{u_*} = \frac{1}{k} \ln(\frac{yu_*}{v}) + A + w(y/H)$$
(2.2)

Where H is the mean flow depth and w is the wake function.

Consequently, the velocity close to bed can be calculated by the log-law, and in the outer region (y/H > 0.2), the log-wake law is applicable. In the present study the values for k and A (irrespective of flow type) in the above equations are Nikuradse's values for smooth-pipe flow. Good agreement with the linear from of the log-law was showed experimentally in the wall region by Steffler, Rajaratnam and Peterson (1985). Near the water surface, the velocity profiles were found to drop off from the log-law line (dip).

2.3 Effects Of Free Surface

The effect of a free surface on turbulence is appreciable in the calculation of open channel flows. The vertical movement of eddies is affected by the free surface. Nezu (1977) analyzed the flow approaching the critical condition from the tranquil state $(Fr \rightarrow 1)$, and found that the effect of free surface on turbulence is very small but important for near critical flows. The effects of surface tension on preventing surface waves can be considered effects of flows with small Froude number by the free surface.

The importance of the free surface can thus be considered when the vertical velocity v(t) are measured. They are damped by the free surface. These effects could be supported by measurements by Smutek(1969), Nakagawa et al. (1975) and Komor et al. (1982), and also phenomenologically by Hunt (1984). The damping of the vertical fluctuations causes v'/u_{\bullet} to decrease rapidly towards the free surface.

Experimental investigations by Nezu and Rodi (1936) indicate satisfactory agreement with v_i (eddy viscosity) approaching zero at the free surface in open channel flow. Whereas it is not zero at the symmetrical axis of closed channel flow. This shows a discrepancy between open-channel and closed-channel flow.

2.4 Open Channel Flows Over Dunes

The American Society of Civil Engineering (ASCE, 1969) Task Committee on Bed Forms defined ripples and dunes as:

a) Ripples are small bed forms with wave-length less than approximately 0.33 m (1 ft) and height less than 0.03 m (0.1 ft). When the flow velocity increases slightly higher than that required for initiation of sediment motion but lower than that for flat bed or antidunes, ripples occur.

b) Dunes are bed forms smaller than bars but larger than ripples. When the flow velocity and transport rate increase higher than those for ripples but smaller than those for antidunes, dunes occur.

Anderson (1953) studied the wave lengths of bed forms in terms of Froude number by use of a potential flow analysis of flow over a wavy bed.

Kennedy (1963) developed an analytic model of free-surface flow over an erodible bed. He, as in the case of Anderson (1953), employed potential flow theory and the lag distance concept. Kennedy concluded that the Froude number, the depth of the flow, and the lag distance are the major factors that determine the type of bed form and its wavelength. Besides these factors, sediment transport rate affects the velocity of the bed features.

Raudkivi (1963) with laboratory experiments showed that the mean velocity over the crest is 1.09 times of the mean velocity over the flat bed. Also, he showed that by using his own data the main stream shear velocity appears to be equal to or less than that over the flat bed. By comparing the maximum surface drag over the crest with that on the flat bed, it was concluded that they are almost of the same magnitude. He indicated that this drag is probably a big influence on the rate of transport. His measurements show an increasing surface drag in the downstream direction from trough to crest. He concluded that both the applied surface drag and the turbulent agitation on the crest of ripples affect the rate of entrainment and transport. The maximum value of the surface drag is outside the direct influence of the interface turbulence. A region of low pressure is seen over the ripple crest region rather than in the lee of the ripple only.

Engelund (1965) investigated the flow over a fixed and movable sinusoidal bed. His analysis showed how dunes (or antidunes) are formed. The bed configuration diagram, the Froude number versus V/U'_f in which U'_f is the effective friction velocity, were plotted in his report.

Hayashi (1970) theoretically studied the formation of dunes and antidunes on the erodible bed of an open channel. He presented a physical model for the transport of sediment over a wavy bed and concluded that the lag distance introduced by Kennedy (1963) plays a central role in the formation of dunes and antidunes.

Based on laboratory experiments, Yalin and Karahan (1979) presented steepness of sedimentary dunes in graphical forms. They also concluded that the flow affects the sand waves simultaneously in two conflicting ways:

"On the one hand it appears to "build them up," perhaps by eroding their downstream side and thus by rendering the increment of the "scour depth" $\Delta (\approx \delta)$ (constructive action); on the other, it tends to "wash them out" perhaps by exerting the drag force action on their upstream surfaces (destructive action). In the early stages, the former action appears to be dominant, in the later stages the latter."

Fredsoe (1982) has developed a mathematical model to calculate the shape and dimensions (length, height) of sand dunes in rivers. His studies are based on the measured bed shear stress distribution downstream of a rearward-facing step. This model can be used to calculate the flow-resistance curves in alluvial streams.

Based on 1500 reliable flume and field data, Leo C. van Rijn (1984) presented a method which determines the dimensions of bed-forms as well as their equivalent roughness. The Chezy-coefficient in the dune and plane bed regimes can be calculated by this model.

Several experimental studies of flow over dune bed forms have been done. The experimental works by Einstein (1937), Tani (1957), Walker (1961), Raudkivi (1963), Vanoni and Hwang (1967), Kennedy (1969, 1980), Chang (1970), Crickmore (1970), Riafi and Smith (1971), Onys (1973,1974), Fredsoe (1975) Vittal et al. (1976), Mclean (1976), Yalin (1977, 1985), Yalin and Karahan (1979), Etheridge and Kemp (1979), Engelund and Lau (1980), Patankar (1980), Felhman (1985), and Mahmood et al. (1987) are some of the many studies that can be found in the sediment literature.

Various analytical and numerical solutions have also being published. Haque (1970), Mercer (1971), Rodi (1972), Lee et al. (1974), Launder et al. (1975), Puls et al. (1977), Richards and Taylor (1981), Haque and Mahmood (1983, 1986), Mendoza and Shen (1985a, 1985b), and Mclean and Smith (1986) are some of the works that can be found in the literature.

The only detailed measurements available to the writer are measurements of the characteristics of turbulent flows over dunes were performed at Delft (1988) and by Lyn (1993).

One of the objectives of experiments of the Delft study was to obtain a data base for the verification of mathematical computer programs which predict the alluvial bed roughness in rivers under flood conditions. In this study, instantaneous flow velocities in the longitudinal and vertical directions and the instantaneous bed pressures were measured.

Lyn (1993) obtained turbulence measurements in open channel flows over artificial bed form in order to evaluate the similarity structure of the outer region of dune flows and to determine the appropriate scaling of the turbulence characteristics with other simple flows, e.g., the flat-bed flow or the backward-facing step.

The experiments by Lyn were conducted in flows of constant depths over two types of bed form. However, the experiments at Delft were conducted using two depths of flow and a single type of bed form within a restricted range of Froude number, $F = U / \sqrt{gH}$, where U is the depth averaged velocity, H is the mean flow depth.

A summary of the more important experimental conditions is given. For the purpose of presentation, the results are presented under two headings: (1) Lyn's Data and (2) Delft Data. Subsequent sections describe briefly the experimental apparatus, techniques, and instrumentation used in these studies.

2.4.1 Lyn's Data

The data presented by Lyn (1993) was obtained from experiments in an adjustableslope recirculating flume approximately 13 m long and 0.27 m wide. The main dimensions and features of this flume are given in table 3.1. The same flume was used for all experiments. The velocity measurements were obtained using a two-component laserdoppler velocimeter. (LDV) The first type of bed form was ripples. The height of a particular ripple was taken as the difference in elevation between the ripple crest and elevation of the bottom of the flume. The bed consists of a periodic array of 45° triangular elements of amplitude $h = 1.2 \pm 0.1$ cm and wavelength $L = 15 \pm 0.3$ cm (to be referred to as Type I). Lyn assumed this ripple to be a dune, while realizing that this is not a realistic as a dune model. However, it helps to understand the effects of bed geometry on turbulence characteristics. The second type of bed form used in the experiments by Lyn (TypeII) was an idealized dune. The dune was not like a real dune, because the top of the dune did not exhibit a flat plateau. Although ripples and dunes both had a 45° angle for the downstream face and the same wavelength, Lyn distinguished them using upstream geometry.

The flume was made from treated wood, and a layer of 0.25 mm sand was glued to the bottom of the flume.

The width-to-depth ratio of the flows was constant at 4.4 and a constant depth $H = 6.1 \pm 0.2$ cm was used. A fully developed channel flow was established by choosing the ratio of flow development lengths to depth and to length as approximately 150 and 60, respectively.

The dune (ripple) steepness, h/L, was 0.08 in the experiments by Lyn. This ratio has an intermediate value between those indicated by Vanoni and Hawang (1967) and Fredsoe (1982). Vanoni and Hawang (1967) showed that h/L may often exceed 0.1 and by using experiments from Yalin (1972), Fredsoe (1982) proposed a ratio of 0.06. Two experiments were performed using Type II bed forms. One of them had the same Froude number as Type I and the second one was performed using the same shear Reynolds number as Type I.

2.4.2 Delft Data

Experiments were conducted in the sand flume. Before the experiments were commenced, the flume was equipped as follows: (independent variables)

-constant width of 1.50 m
-constant discharge per experiment
-constant energy
-constant slope per experiment, and
-constant water temperature of about 18°C per experiment
A layer of sand grains , 1 to 2 times D₅₀, viz. 1.6 to 3.2 mm, was glued on the concrete dunes (using Tooski glue).

Measurements of $\overline{U}, \overline{W}, \overline{u'u'}, \overline{w'w'}, \overline{u'w'}$ above sand plastered concrete dunes (L=1.60 m, H=0.08 m) at a distance 0.37 m from the wall (because of the optical setup and the width of the flume) were recorted. Flow intensities were measured at 16 cross-sections along a dune. Also, the velocity and bed pressure measurements were obtained. From these experiments, the following parameters were determined: shear stress velocity, location of reattachment point, local energy-level slopes, turbulent kinetic energies, eddy viscosities, and turbulent mixing lengths,

Because of the bed material which was chosen, the bed roughness and the shear stress velocity (U_{*})could be calculated. A value of 0.4 was used for the Von Karman (κ) and in experiments T₅ and T₆, the k_s value was chosen as 2.5 mm which is the grain size and these used to determine the shear velocity.

It was assumed that the boundary layer along the dune surface in experiments T_5 and T_6 is a turbulent boundary layer corresponding to uniform channel flow. On the basis of these assumptions, the formulas for the boundary layer theory was applied to obtain values for τ_b and \overline{U} .

2.5 Wall-wake

Schlichting (1930) was the first who presented the plane wake theory based on Prandtl's mixing length hypothesis. Since then many studies have been done. However, very few works were in the field of wall-wake. Sforza and Mons (1969) investigated the effects of large inviscid disturbance caused by leading edge obstacle. In this study, the flow behind an obstacle was classified into 3 regions namely; the recirculation region, the characteristic decay region, the asymptotic decay region.

Rajaratnam and Rai (1979) used a two-layer model to describe the far-wake part of plane turbulent wall wakes. The plane wake equation was used to describe the velocity distribution in the outer region and the log-law equation in the inner region.

However, no study has been done on flow over dunes using a wall-wake theory (known to the writer).

2.6 Conclusions

The aims of this report are to present some experimental results concerning the velocity distribution and bed shear stress in open channel flows and to detect the influence of non-uniform flow. Two experiments which were mentioned above in relation to open channel flows are used as a basis for developing our understanding of the velocity and the bed shear stress.

Two series of experiments discussed were qualitative and quantitative, and were undertaken with specific intentions. As can be seen, Lyn's data aimed at identifying the appropriate scaling of the turbulence characteristics with the other simple flows. However, the main aim of Delft measurement was to verify the mathematical computer programs which predict the alluvial bed roughness in rivers. In the next chapter, this report looks at these studies from a different perspective.

		Lyn's study		Delfi	Delft Study
arameter	Case 1	Case 2	Case 3	T5	T6
(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)	(9)
	Type I	Type II	Type II	;	:
low depth H (cm)	6.1	6.1	6.1	25.2	33.4
nergy Slope, s(10-3)	5.25	1.45	4.0	96	95
Velocity, U(cm/s)	25.4	26.9	55.1	44	55
	0.08	0.08	0.08	0.052	0.052
	0.2	0.2	0.2	0.33	0.25
	0.33	0.35	0.71	0.26	0.29
/ v(10 ³)	15.5	16.4	33.8	100.8	177

Table 2.1. Experimental parameters (Source: Lyn (1993))





Figure 2.1 Defination sketch of flow and bed forms studied: (a) Type I bed form; (b) Type II bed form (source : Lyn [1993])



Figure 2.2. Concret dune profile (source: Delft [1988])

CHAPTER 3: VELOCITY PERTURBATION ANALYSIS

3.1 Introduction

One of the important studies in sediment transport is that of understanding the behavior of turbulent flows over dunes, particularly with regard to their mean velocity distribution and shear stress. The goal of the investigation herein described is to investigate the velocity distribution of turbulent flow over dunes. In attempting to achieve this goal a similarity analysis of velocity distribution is presented which helps to illustrate the relationship of the discrepancy between non-uniform and uniform flow to the depth of flow.

It is helpful to distinguish and define the three subregions of the turbulent structure of open channel flows:

(i) Wall Region $(\frac{y}{H} \le 0.2)$ (ii) Intermediate Region $(0.2 < \frac{y}{H} \le 0.6)$ (iii) Free-Surface Region $(0.6 < \frac{y}{H} \le 1.0)$

3.2. Velocity Distribution

As mentioned earlier, we are trying to find a simple relationship in non-uniform flow over dune in terms of macroscale (depth, mean velocity and bed slop).

The quantity the shear velocity u_* is calculated by

$$\frac{U}{u_{\star}} = 2.5 \ln \frac{H}{K} + 6.2 \tag{3.1}$$

$$K = 3.3 \frac{v}{u_*} + K_s \tag{3.2}$$

in which U = the mean velocity K_s = bed roughness, H = the depth of the flow, v = the kinematic viscosity, and κ = 0.4 the Von Karman constant

For the uniform flow in a smooth turbulent flow, the longitudinal velocity u, can be expressed in terms of the log-law equation by

$$\frac{u_c}{u_*} = \frac{1}{\kappa} \ln\left(\frac{yu_*}{v}\right) + A \tag{3.3}$$

Figures 3.1, 3.2 and 3.3 show a comparison of the measured data and the calculated mean velocity by use of log-law equation at different locations along the flow stream. It can be seen that there is a similarity at any section for any run. The maximum defect velocity decreases downflow and the height of the location $\left(\frac{y}{H}\right)$ of the mean velocity increases.

From Figures 3.13, 3.14 and 3.15 some resemblance between different runs can be seen. As the depth of the flow increases, the maximum defect velocity close to the bed increases and the relative elevation $\left(\frac{y}{H}\right)$ of the point where the velocity equals the mean velocity decreases. Figures 3.13, 3.14 and 3.15 show that the mean velocity occurs for Lyn's Data at $\left(\frac{y}{H}\right) = 0.40$ and for T5 at $\left(\frac{y}{H}\right) = 0.30$ and for T6 at $\left(\frac{y}{H}\right) = 0.26$. As a result, the value of the depth of the flow is one factor that affects the maximum defect

velocity in turbulent flow and where the mean velocity occurs.

Figures 3.4 to 3.9 show differences from uniform flow case 1, 2, 3 from Lyn and Delft. Figures 3.10 to 3.15 are normalized differences in velocity with surface velocity and Figures 3.16, 3.17 and 3.18 with peak perturbation. All Figures confirm the results.

The peak perturbation versus wave length was plotted in Figure 3.19. From Figure 3.19 it was found that for $\frac{X}{L} \ge 0.2$ the data are well described by a curve and peak perturbation tends to zero.

Three subregions of the turbulent structures of open channel flow has to be considered in this model. As we know, log-law was found from assumptions of pipe flow. From Figures 3.14 and 3.15 it is seen that the mean velocity the same as the vertical turbulence intensity is affected by the free surface. The maximum velocity is shifted to below the free surface, and bursting phenomena and inner variables affect the calculation of the mean velocity close to the bed.

3.3 Bed Shear stress

Lyn (1994) presented a valuable discussion on his own data and the Delft data. He studied the velocity defect and the Reynolds shear stress profile from the flat-bed profiles for region of flow far from the bed.

Figures 3.20 and 3.21 show that flow acceleration near the bed makes the bed shear stress increase very rapilly and it becomes almost a constant downstream. This knowledge is quite useful in sediment studies. The pressure field over a dune changes from very strong adverse pressure gradient to a slightly favorable pressure gradient. Figure 3.22 shows decay of the differences in the bed shear stress versus $\frac{X}{L}$. Peak perturbation versus stress differences in Figures 3.23 and 3.24 shows that the data are well described by a straight line, which could be represented by

$$DU_* = 1.43Du_* - 0.044(Du_*)^2 \tag{3.4}$$

in which $DU_* = \frac{U_{*c} - U_{*d}}{U_{*c}}$ and $Du_* = \frac{u_{*c} - u_{*d}}{u_{*c}}$



Figure 3.1 Velocity distribution (measured by D. A. Lyn)



Figure 3.1 (continued)



Figure 3.1 (continued)



Figure 3.1 (continued)






Figure 3.2 (continued)



Figure 3.2 (continued)



Figure 3.2 (continued)



Figure 3.2 (continued)



Figure 3.2 (continued)



Figure 3.3 Velocity distribution (T6, measured by Delft)



Figure 3.3 (continued)



Figure 3.3 (continued)



Figure 3.3 (continued)



Figure 3.3 (continued)



Figure 3.3 (continued)







35

H/X



Figure 3.6 Differences in velocity (Case 3 measured by D. Lyn)









÷

H/s











H/.<





H/.

;









H/X



45

H/\$



H/X





H/X











0









.







Figure 3.24 Normalized peak perturbation vs stress diff rences

CHAPTER 4: WALL WAKE ANALYSIS

4.1 Introduction

Two cases of wall-wakes (Lyn, Delft) with favorable pressure gradients were investigated in the present study. These cases are based on the assumption that there exists two distinct regions of flow downstream from the crest of the dune (recirculation region and near-wake region or flow-development region).

The effects of the dune (obstacle) on the velocity distribution by using the wall-wake function and the law of wall are discussed. The present investigation is concerned with developing a relationship comprising the velocity distribution, the size of obstacle and other geometric properties of the channel. The results of the mean velocity profiles, wall shear stress, decay of vclocity defect and growth of the half-width of the wake are presented in convenient forms. The basic concern here is the manner in which a wallwake disturbance develops downstream on a dune.

4.2 Velocity Distribution

Considering the velocity profile in the wake as shown in Figure 4.5, define a velocity defect u_1 ,

$$u_1 = U_0 - u \tag{4.1}$$

where U_o is the maximum (surface velocity).

Let us assume

$$\frac{u_1}{u_{1m}} = f\left(\frac{y}{b}\right) = f(\eta) \tag{4.2}$$

where u_{1m} is the maximum value of u_1 occurring as shown in Figure 4.5, b is the length scale when u_1 is equal to 1/2 of u_{1m} .

A similar expression for τ is

$$\frac{\tau}{\rho u_{1m}^2} = g\left(\frac{v}{b}\right) = g(\eta) \tag{4.3}$$

Because of the effect of vorticity, mixing, back flow in the recirculation region, the shear layer and the wall, the far-wake approximation is not valid. It was shown by Rajaratnam and Rai (1979) that the far-wake approximation might be valid for $\frac{x}{h}$ greater than about 50. Sforza and Mas (1969) studied the flow behind a leading edge obstacle. Their studies were confined to the near-wake region $\frac{x}{h} < 100$, and the flowfield behind the obstacle was assumed to have wakelike characteristics. The author has applied wall-wake characteristics in the present study.

The velocity and length scales, u_{1m} and b for the outer region of the wall were obtained directly from the velocity profile as shown in Figure 4.5. The equation obtained from the wall-wake profile by Schlichting (1968) is as follows.

$$\frac{U_o - u}{u_{1m}} = \left\{ 1 - 0.293 \left(\frac{y}{b}\right)^{3/2} \right\}^2$$
(4.4)

The equation obtained for the shear stress distribution in the "far wake region" is

$$\frac{\tau}{\rho u_{1m}^2} = 0.128 \left(\frac{y}{b}\right) \left\{ 1 - 0.293 \left(\frac{y}{b}\right)^{3/2} \right\}^2$$
(4.5)

The following log-law was applied for the inner-region. Figures 4.9 and 4.10 have been used to adjust B in the log-law equation:

$$u^{+} = \frac{1}{k} \ln(y^{+}) + B \tag{4.6}$$

Herein $u^+ = \frac{u}{u_*}$, $y^+ = \frac{yu_*}{v}$ is the dimensionless y-coordinate normalized by the viscous length $\frac{v}{u_*}$.

Figures 4.6, 4.7 and 4.8 show that the velocity profiles obtained from experiments over a dune after the recirculation region are approximately similar but do not agree very well with the wall-wake profile (Eqn. 4.4). The reason may be the effect of the near-wake characteristics. The deviation from the wake-profile can be seen to start for T5 at $\frac{y}{b} = 0.6$ and for T6 at $\frac{y}{b} = 0.7$ and a best-fit line through these points can be described by

$$\frac{U_o - u}{u_{Im}} = 0.467 - 0.61 \ln \frac{y}{b}$$
(4.7)

The velocity distribution for the inner region is plotted in Figures 4.9 and 4.10. The following equation from the log-law was found to be the best-fit line for our data.

$$\frac{u}{u_{\bullet}} = 5.75 \log \frac{y}{k_s} + 8.5 \tag{4.8}$$

The power law form for the velocity profile for the inner region can be obtained from Figures 4.11 and 4.12. The following equation was obtained from the plots.

$$\frac{u}{u_*} = 18 \left(\frac{y}{b}\right)^{1/5}$$
(4.9)

The value of the coefficient ,18, is different from that obtained by Rajaratnam and Rai (1979) for the far-wall wake which it was 28.

 $\frac{u_{1m}}{U_0}$ versus $\frac{x}{h}$ is plotted in Figure 4.13. The following equation which shows the velocity defect decay for the wall-wake is very different from the best-fit line from the

present data.

$$\frac{u_{1m}}{U_o} = 1.3 \left(\frac{x}{C_D h}\right)^{-1/2} \qquad \text{for } \frac{x}{h} > 5.2 \tag{4.10}$$

where C_D is the drag coefficient.

The growth of the half-width (b) of the wake is plotted against x/h in Figure 4.14. Due to the slope of the bed the best fit line is almost constant and equal to 10h.

4.3 Bed Shear stress

The present study just approaches to after recirculation region through the wall-wake characteristics.

 $\frac{\tau_c - \tau_o}{0.5\rho u_{lm}^2}$ versus $\frac{x}{h}$ is plotted in Figure 4.15. It does not follow the equation obtained

for the wall-wake. The bed shear stress distribution on a dune and on a flat bed is very different.










Figure 4.3 Velocity distribution in the region of seperation (T6)



Figure 4.4 Velocity distribution in the wake region (T6)













q | K

Figure 4.8 Velocity distribution : outer region (measured by D. Lyn)

÷

















0







CHAPTER 5: CONCLUSIONS

Velocity and bed shear stress distributions have been studied in fully developed turbulent flows over a fixed dune bed. The following results have been obtained from velocity profiles over dunes from non-dimensional analysis for velocity distribution and from the characteristics of the plane wall-wake.

-The value of the depth of the flow is one factor that affects the maximum defect velocity in turbulent flow and where the mean velocity occurs. As the depth of the flow increases, the maximum defect velocity close to the bed increases and the distance of the height $\left(\frac{y}{H}\right)$ of the mean velocity decreases.

-A review of the available experiments flow over dune indicates that the plane wallwake is a good approach in describing the velocity distribution. The result of mean velocity profiles, wall shear stress, decay of the velocity defect, and growth of the halfwidth of the wake, are presented in convenient forms.

-The present results make it possible to make a fair estimate of the magnitude of longitudinal velocity for a particular channel at a certain location over dunes downflow from recirculation region.

-The bed shear stress distribution can not be reasonably evaluated from the wall-wake equation because the bed shear stress in the near-wake flow is changing rapidly due to the effect of vorticity, mixing, back flow in the recirculation region and the shear layer. As a result the far-wake approximation is not valid

-More experimental data on different h/H are required to find a model for longitudinal velocity distribution because approximations from the plane wall-wake are not valid over dunes with favorable pressure gradient.

REFERENCES

Anderson, A. B. (1953). "The characteristics of sediment waves formed by flow in open channels," *Proceedings of the Third Mid-Western Conference on Fluid Mechanics*, Univ. of Minnesota, Minneapolis, MN, pp. 379-395.

ASCE Task Force. (1963). "Friction factor in open channels." Journal of the Hydraulics Division. ASCE. 89(HY2). pp. 97-143.

Bradshaw, P. (1975). "Review-Complex turbulent flows." J. Fluid Engrg., 97(2), 146-154.

Chang, F. F. M. (1970). "Ripple concentration and friction factor." Journal of the Hydraulics Division, ASCE, 96(HY2), paper 7067, 417-430.

Coles, D. (1956). "The law of the wake in the turbulent boundary layer." J. Fluid Mech., 1: 191-226.

Crickmore, M. G. (1970). "Effects of flume width on bed form characteristics." J. Hydr. Div., ASCE, 96(2), 473-496.

Einstein, H. A. (1950). "The bed-load function for sediment transportation in open channel flows." *Tech. Bulletin No. 1026*, U.S. Dept. of Agr., Washington, D.C.

Engel, P. (1981). "Length of flow separation over dunes" J. Hydr. Div., ASCE, 107(HY10), paper 16549, 1133-1143.

Engel, P., and Lau, Y. L. (1980). "Computation of bed load using bathymetric data," J. Hydr. Div., ASCE, 106(HY3), paper 15255, 369-380.

Etheridge, D. U., and Kemp, P. H.(1979). "Velocity Measurements downstream of rearward facing steps with reference to bed instability." *Journal of Hydraulic Research, IAHR*, Vol. 17, No. 2.

Felhlman, H. M. (1985). "Resistance components and velocity distributions of open channel flows over bedforms," thesis presented to Colorado State University, at Ft. Collins, Colo., in partial fulfillment of the requirements for the degree of Master of Science.

Fredsoe, J. (1974). "On the development of dunes in erodible channels." *Journal of Fluid Mechanics*, 64(1), 1-16.

Fredsoe, J. (1982). "Shape and Dimensions of stationary dunes in rivers." J. Hydr. Div., ASCE, 108(8), 932-947.

Haque, M. I. (1970). "Analytically determined ripple shapes," thesis presented to Colorado State University, at Ft. Collins, Colo., in partial fulfillment of the requirements for the degree of Master of Science.

Haque, M. I., and Mahmood, K. (1983). "Analytical determination of form friction factor." J. Hydr. Engrg., 109(4),590-610.

Haque, M. I., and Mahmood, K. (1985). "Geometry of ripples and dunes." J. Hydr. Engrg., 111(1), 48-63.

Haque, M. I., and Mahmood, K. (1986). "Analytical study on steepness of ripples and dunes." J. Hydr. Engrg., 112(3), 220-236.

Hayashi, T. (1970). "Formation of dunes and antidunes in open channels," J. Hydr. Div., ASCE, 97(2), 357-366.

Hunt, J. C. R. (1984). "Turbulence structure and turbulent diffusion near gas-liquid interfaces." *Gas Transfer at Water Surfaces* (eds. W. Brutsaert & G. H. Jirka). Reidel Pub., pp. 67-82.

Jonys, C. K. (1973). "An experimental study of bed-form mechanics." thesis presented to the University of Alberta, at Edmonton, Alberta, Canada, in partial fulfillment of the requirements for the degree of Doctor of Philosophy.

Jonys, C. K. (1974). "Pressure and shear stress distribution on alluvial bed forms." *Hydraulic Division Technical Report*, National Water Research Institute, Canada Center for Inland Waters, Burlington, Ontario, Canada.

Kennedy, J. F. (1963). "The Mechanics of dunes and antidunes in erodible-bed channels," J. Fluid Mech., 16, 521-544.

Keulegan, G. H. (1938). "Laws of turbulent flow in open channels," J. Hydr.Res., National Bureau of Standards, Vol. 121, 707-741. Kennedy, J. F. (1969). "The formation of sediment ripples, dunes and antidunes," Annual Review of Fluid Mechanics, 1, 147-168.

Kennedy, J. F. (1980). "Bed forms in alluvial streams: Some views on current understanding and identification of unresolved problems." *Application of stochastic processes in sediment transport*, H. W. Shen and H. Kikkawa, eds., Water Resources Publications, Ft. Collins, Colo.

Komori, S., et al (1982). "Turbulence structure and transport mechanism at the free surface in open channel flow." Int. J. Heat and Mass Transfer, 25: 513-522.

Launder, B. E., Reece, G. J., and Rodi, W. (1975). "Progress in the development of a Reynolds-stress turbulence closure." J. Fluid Mech., 68(Part 3), 537-566.

Lee, B. K., and Jobson, H. E. (1974). "Stochastic analysis of dune bed profiles." J. Hydr. Div., ASCE, 100(HY7), paper 10657, 849-867.

Lyn, D. A. (1993). "Turbulence measurements in open-channel flows over artificial bed forms." J. Hydr. Div., ASCE, 119(3), 306-326.

Mahmood, K., et al. (1987). "ACOP canals equilibrium runs computerized base." *Report No. IWRI-87-4*, Int. Water Resour. Inst., School of Engrg. and Appl. Sci., George Washington Univ., Washington, D.C.

Mclean, S. R., and Smith, J. D. (1986). "A model for flow over two-dimensional bed forms." J. Hydr. Engrg., 112(4), 300-317.

Mendoza, C., and Shen, H. W. (1985a). "Steady two-dimensional flow over dunes." Proc., 21st Congress of Int. Assoc. of Hydr. Res. (IAHR), Melbourne, Australia.

Mendoza, C., and Shen, H. W. (1985a). "Numerical modeling of turbulent flow over dunes to predict flow resistance." *Proc. Int. Symp. on Refined Flow Modeling and Turbulence Measurements*, Int. Assoc. of Hydr. Res., Univ. of Iowa, Iowa City, Iowa.

Mendoza, C., and Shen, H. W. (1990). "Investigation of turbulent flow over dunes." J. *Hydr. Div.*, ASCE, 116(4), 459-477.

Mercer, A. G. (1971). "Analytically determined bed-form shape," Journal of the Engineering Mechanics Division, ASCE, 97(EM1), 175-180.

Nezu, I., and Nakagawa, H. (1993). *Turbulence in open-channel flows*. A. A. Balkema, Rotterdam, Brookfield.

Nezu, I., and Rodi. W. (1986). "Open-channel flow measurements with a laser Doppler anemometer. J. Hydraulic Eng., ASCE, 112: 335-355.

Nezu, I. (1977). "Turbulent structure in open channel flows." ph.D Thesis presented to Kyoto University, Kyoto, Japan.

Patankar, S. V. (1980). Numerical heat transfer and fluid flow, Hemisphere Publishing Corp., Washington, D. C.

Plus, W., Sunderman, J., and Vollmers, H. (1977). "A numerical approach to solid matter transport computation," *Proc., 17th Congress of Int. Assoc. of Hydr. Res. (IAHR), Baden-Baden, West Germany.*

Rajaratnam, N. and Rai, S. P. (1979). "Plane turbulent wall wakes." J. Mech. Div., ASCE, 105(EM5), 779-794.

Richards, K. J., and Taylor, P. A. (1981). "A numerical model of flow over sand waves in water of finite depth." *Geophysical J. Royal Astronomical Soc.*, 65, 103-128.

Riafi, M. F., and Smith, K.V. H. (1971). "Flow over triangular elements simulating dunes." J. Hydr. Div., ASCE, 97(7), 963-976.

Raudkivi, A. J. (1963). "Study of sediment ripple formation." J. Hydr. Div., ASCE, 89(6), 15-33.

Schlichting, H (1968). Boundary Layer Theory, 6th ed. McGraw Hill Book Co., Inc., New York.

Sforza, P. M., and Mons, R. F. (1970). "Wall-wake: flow behind a Leading edge obstacle," IAA, 8(2), 2162-2167.

Smutek, R. (1969). "Discussion on 'measurement of turbulence in water' by Richardson & McQuivey." *j.Hydraulics Div.*, ASCE, 95(HY1), 519-523.

Steffler, P. M. Rajaratnam, N., and Peterson, A. W. (1985). "LDA measurements in open channel." *J. Hydr. Engrg.*, ASCE, 111(1), 119-129.

Tani, L. (1957). "Experimental investigation of flow separation over a step." Symposium Freiburg/BR, International Union of Theoretical and Applied Mechanics, Boundary Layer Research, Aug. 26-29.

van Mierlo M. C. L. M., and de Ruiter, J. C. C. (1988). "Turbulence measurements above artificial dunes." *Delft Hydraulics, Q789*, Vols. 1 and 2, Jan. and March 1988.

Vanoni, Vito A., and Hawang Li-sang. (1967). "Relation Between bed forms and friction in streams." 7 *Lydr. Div.*, ASCE, 128(3), 121-144.

van Rijn, C. L. (1984). "Sediment transport, part III: Bed forms and alluvial roughness." J. Hydr. Engrg., 110(12), 1733-1754.

Vital, N., Ranga Raju, K. C., and Garde, R. J. (1976). "Velocity distribution over triangular elements simulating ripples and dunes." J. Irrigation and Power, Central Board of Irrigation, New Delhi, India, 33(3), 375-383.

Walker, G. R. (1961). " A study of two-dimensional flow of turbulent field past a step." thesis presented to the University of Auckland at Auckland, New Zeland, in partial fulfillment of the requirements for the degree of Master of Engineering.

Yalin, M. S. (1985). "On the determination of ripple geometry," J. Hydr. Div., ASCE, Vol. III, No. 8, 381-392.

Yalin, M. S. and Karahan, E. (1979). "Steepness of sedimentary dunes," J. Hydr. Div., ASCE, 105(4), 381-392.